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REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR JOHN ANSON FORD PARK REGIONAL AQUATICS 
CENTER SWIMMING POOL MAINTENANCE SERVICES 

 
ADDENDUM NO. 2 

 
November 17, 2025 
 
This addendum is being issued for the REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR JOHN ANSON 
FORD PARK REGIONAL AQUATICS CENTER SWIMMING POOL MAINTENANCE 
SERVICES (“RFP”). 
 
Submit a proposal with full understanding and full consideration of this addendum. This 
addendum is being issued to make the following changes: 
 

A. The proposal due date is changed from Tuesday, November 18, 2025, at 5:00 p.m. 
to Thursday, November 20, 2025, at 5:00 p.m. 

 
B. Attachment A, Proposal Bid Sheet, is replaced with the enclosed Attachment A, 

Proposal Bid Sheet. 
 

C. Section V. (Scope of Work), Subsection 1 (Contractor’s Responsibility), first bulleted 
paragraph (Physical On-Site Visit), first bulleted subparagraph is amended to read as 
follows: 
 
“ Contractor shall provide and schedule certified LACDEH swimming pool 

technicians for physical routine site visits.” 
 

D. Section V. (Scope of Work), Subsection 1 (Contractor’s Responsibility), second 
bulleted paragraph (Pool Technicians), is amended by adding a fourth bulleted 
subparagraph to read as follows: 
 
“ In addition to submitting the name, biography and LACDEH license for all 

technicians with the proposal, if there are any updates to Pool Technicians, submit 
the updated name, biography, experience and LACDEH license to the City for 
review before technician begins servicing the pool.” 

 
E. Section V. (Scope of Work), Subsection 1 (Contractor’s Responsibility), third bulleted 

paragraph (Hours of Service), first bulleted subparagraph is amended to read as 
follows: 
 
“ Service will be performed three (3) times per week from June to August and two (2) 
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times per week from September to May. Service per week may increase depending 
on demand and use of the pool. Service visits will be from 10:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. 
when the pools are closed to the public, Monday through Friday.” 

 
F. Section V. (Scope of Work), Subsection 1 (Contractor’s Responsibility), fourth bulleted 

paragraph (Pool Maintenance Each Visit), eight bulleted subparagraph is amended to 
read as follows: 
 
“ Vacuum pools to desired cleanliness by deploying pool vacuums in each pool and 

removing them when vacuuming is completed, which should take approximately 
one (1) to three (3) hours per pool.” 

 
G. Section V. (Scope of Work), Subsection 1 (Contractor’s Responsibility), sixth bulleted 

paragraph (Chemical Requirements) is amended to read as follows: 
 

“  Chemical Requirements 
o Contractor will provide all chemicals. Awarded Contractor must supply all 

chemicals to maintain a proper pool water balance. Adequate supplies must be on 
hand to ensure chemical requirements are always fulfilled. 

o Contractor must maintain more than one chemical supplier to ensure the 
Contractor has adequate stock or access to required chemical supplies. 

o Contractor must maintain sufficient inventory of pool chemicals. 
o Contractor will have limited space in the Equipment Room to store supplies. 
o Chemicals will need to be delivered through the Aquatics Center parking lot on 

Scout Avenue to allow for direct access to the Chemical Storage Rooms. Chlorine 
must be pre-diluted offsite. Diluting on site is prohibited. 

o The time frame to deliver pool chemicals and supplies will be between 7:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m. 

o Each pool facility must have secondary chlorine container on site to treat the pool 
in case of a fecal accident.  

o Contractor must provide complete pool water analysis to determine quantities 
and types of chemicals necessary to maintain pool water within the following 
levels: 
 pH: 7.2 to 7.6 
 Alkalinity: 80 to 100 ppm 
 Calcium hardness: 200 to 400 ppm 
 Chlorine: 1.5 to 2.0 ppm 
 Total dissolved solids: 300 to 1,000 ppm 

o Contractor shall submit receipts with the monthly invoice for reimbursable 
chemical expenses with a markup not to exceed 15% for all administrative 
fees. Refer to the Proposal Bid Sheet for established annual chemical 
allowance amount. Any additional overage or expenses exceeding the 
annual chemical allowance amount will require City’s pre-approval via 
change order or amendment.” 
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This addendum is also being issued to incorporate the following Response to Request for 
Information No. 1 into the RFP: 

 
 

RESPONSE TO REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION NO. 1 
 

1. Question (Q): Chemicals: Will the bid stand as is or will the chemical portion be 
changed in any way and if so how.  
 
Answer (A): The RFP has been amended to include language regarding procurement of 
the necessary chemicals. Refer to Section F. of Addendum No. 2. 
 

2. Q: Pool cleaning: How often will each pool need to be brushed?  
 
A: During each pool maintenance visit as stated in the RFP; however, if the Contractor 
determines brushing is not necessary during a respective pool maintenance visit, the 
City’s Public Works Parks & Facilities Supervisor may waive this requirement for the 
respective pool maintenance visit. 

 
3. Q: Pool cleaning: How often will each pool need to be vacuumed?  

 
A: During each pool maintenance visit as stated in the RFP; however, if the Contractor 
determines vacuuming is not necessary during a respective pool maintenance visit, the 
City’s Public Works Parks & Facilities Supervisor may waive this requirement for the 
respective pool maintenance visit. 

 
4. Q: Pool cleaning: How often will the slide need to be washed, cleaned, and protectant 

applied and is there a procedure for this so we can know the time required?  
 
A: During each pool maintenance visit as stated in the RFP; however, if the Contractor 
determines washing, cleaning, and protectant is not necessary during a respective pool 
maintenance visit, the City’s Public Works Parks & Facilities Supervisor may waive this 
requirement for the respective pool maintenance visit. 

 
5. Q: For pool water analysis:  What tests are being asked for?   

 
A: Means and methods for meeting this requirement are on the Contractor. The 
Contractor must ensure all pools meet all LACDEH requirements. 

 
6. Q: For pool water analysis:  Who can perform them?  
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A: Means and methods for meeting this requirement are on the Contractor. The 
Contractor must ensure all pools meet all LACDEH requirements. 

 
7. Q: For pool water analysis: With what type of test equipment?   

 
A: Means and methods for meeting this requirement are on the Contractor. The 
Contractor must ensure all pools meet all LACDEH requirements. 

 
8. Q: For pool water analysis: Pool service company or independent lab?  

 
A: Means and methods for meeting this requirement are on the Contractor. The 
Contractor must ensure all pools meet all LACDEH requirements. 

 
9. Q: For pool water analysis:  Who take and maintains the chain of custody for the sample 

to be tested?  
 
A: Means and methods for meeting this requirement are on the Contractor. The 
Contractor must ensure all pools meet all LACDEH requirements. 
 

10. Q: From page 12 For pool water analysis: The ranges listed are for pool water, not 
domestic water.  Please clarify if this is the same as on page 12 or different and if 
different how?  
 
A: The RFP has been amended to clarify analysis is for pool water. Refer to Section F. 
of Addendum No. 2. 

 
11. Q: Automatic system:  Is this automatic remote reporting / monitoring system already 

installed in all 3 the pool chemical controllers?  It is an option.  If not one can be 
installed but it will require a decent amount of monetary  investment in additional 
equipment connected to the existing pool chemical controllers to be active.  Please 
clarify.  

 
A: The Contractor must provide remote reporting/monitoring if the remote systems are 
currently installed on the pool chemical controllers. If the remote systems are not 
currently installed on the pool chemical controllers, the awarded Contractor will provide 
a cost to the City to enable remote capabilities for the pool chemical controllers. 

 
12. Q: Heater maintenance:  Please clarify who will be doing this maintenance work.  

 
A: As stated in the RFP, the City’s HVAC maintenance contractor, ABM, will be 
providing the heater maintenance; however, the Contractor will be responsible for 
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ensuring the pool heaters are being properly maintained by the City’s HVAC 
maintenance contractor, including but not limited to, ensuring all ongoing services, 
parts, and materials for the pool heaters are being upkept and in good working order. 
The pool maintenance contractor will be responsible for informing the City’s HVAC 
maintenance contractor and the City’s Public Works Parks & Facilities Supervisor when 
the pool heaters are not working correctly. 
 

13. Q: Heater maintenance:  Please clarify who will be responsible for the work being done 
to the manufacturers requirements.  
 
A: As stated in the RFP, the City’s HVAC maintenance contractor, ABM, will be 
providing the heater maintenance; however, the Contractor will be responsible for 
ensuring the pool heaters are being properly maintained by the City’s HVAC 
maintenance contractor, including but not limited to, ensuring all ongoing services, 
parts, and materials for the pool heaters are being upkept and in good working order. 
The pool maintenance contractor will be responsible for informing the City’s HVAC 
maintenance contractor and the City’s Public Works Parks & Facilities Supervisor when 
the pool heaters are not working correctly. 
 

14. Q: Heater maintenance:  Please clarify directly if the contractor will be responsible for 
the cities heater maintenance work. 
 
A: As stated in the RFP, the City’s HVAC maintenance contractor, ABM, will be 
providing the heater maintenance; however, the Contractor will be responsible for 
ensuring the pool heaters are being properly maintained by the City’s HVAC 
maintenance contractor, including but not limited to, ensuring all ongoing services, 
parts, and materials for the pool heaters are being upkept and in good working order. 
The pool maintenance contractor will be responsible for informing the City’s HVAC 
maintenance contractor and the City’s Public Works Parks & Facilities Supervisor when 
the pool heaters are not working correctly. 
 

15. Q: Monthly reports on pool and equipment status: Please detail specifically what is 
being asked for and how the contractor is to report them and on what scale especially 
for items that are not serviceable  Circulation pump and motors, all electrical systems, 
valves, etc. all these items generally run until they fail with little warning or notice.  
 
A: Means and methods for meeting this requirement are on the Contractor. The 
Contractor’s report must show the condition and status of the pools and equipment. 
 

16. Q: Section 1A & B:  Please provide the form in which the city wants this to be submitted.  
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A: Form to be provided by the Contractor for the City’s review and approval.  
 

17. Q: Section 2A & C:  Please provide the form in which the city wants this to be submitted.  
 
A: Form to be provided by the Contractor for the City’s review and approval. 
  

18. Q: Section 3:  Please provide the form in which the city wants this to be submitted. 
 
A: Form to be provided by the Contractor for the City’s review and approval. 
 

19. Q: Section 4A & B:  Please provide the form in which the city wants this to be submitted.  
 
A: Form to be provided by the Contractor for the City’s review and approval. 
 

20. Q: Section B:  Please provide the form in which the city wants this to be submitted.  
 
A: Form to be provided by the Contractor for the City’s review and approval. 

 
Prospective proposers who have already submitted their proposal will be contacted to 
arrange for return of their proposal. Inform subcontractors and suppliers as necessary. 
   
Sincerely,  
 
 
 
 
Bernardo Iniguez 
Director of Public Works/ Facilities 
 
Enclosure 
 
The proposer shall individually identify and acknowledge receipt of this addendum by signing 
and enclosing a copy of this form in his/her proposal submittal. Failure to do so may result in 
disqualification of his/her proposal submittal. 
 
 

Signature of Proposer Date 
 
   
 

Proposer Firm Name and Address 



ATTACHMENT “A” 
 

PROPOSAL BID SHEET 
 
 

The undersigned, having examined the Request for Proposals for the JOHN ANSON 
FORD PARK REGIONAL AQUATICS CENTER SWIMMING POOL MAINTENANCE 
SERVICES and having visited the site and examined the conditions affecting the work, 
hereby proposes and agrees to furnish all labor, materials, equipment, and appliances, 
and to perform operations necessary to complete the work as required by said Request 
for Proposals and itemized bid schedule below. All routine work shall be performed 
two (2) times per week from June to August and three (3) times per week from 
September to May. City’s fiscal year begins on July 1st and ends on June 30th.  
 

Year One 
Item 1 Item Description Frequency Weeks Unit Price Total Price 

1 Pool Maintenance Service 
from June to August 

3 12 $  $  

2 Pool Maintenance service 
from September to May 

2 40 $  $  

3 Chemical Allowance 1  LS $150,000 
 Year One (1) 

Grand Total 
 

 
Year Two 

Item 1 Item Description Frequency Weeks Unit Price Total Price 
1 Pool Maintenance Service 

from June to August 
3 12 $  $  

2 Pool Maintenance service 
from September to May 

2 40 $  $  

3 Chemical Allowance 1  LS $157,500 
 Year Two (2) 

Grand Total 
 

 
Year Three 

Item 1 Item Description Frequency Weeks Unit Price Total Price 
1 Pool Maintenance Service 

from June to August 
3 12 $  $  

2 Pool Maintenance service 
from September to May 

2 40 $  $  

3 Chemical Allowance  1  LS $165,400 
 Year Three (3) 

Grand Total 
 

 
Year Four (Optional) 

Item 1 Item Description Frequency Weeks Unit Price Total Price 
1 Pool Maintenance Service 

from June to August 
3 12 $  $  

2 Pool Maintenance service 
from September to May 

2 40 $  $  

3 Chemical Allowance 1  LS $173,600 
 Year Four (4) 

Grand Total 
 



 
 

Year Five (Optional) 
Item 1 Item Description Frequency Weeks Unit Price Total Price 

1 Pool Maintenance Service 
from June to August 

3 12 $  $  

2 Pool Maintenance service 
from September to May 

2 40 $  $  

3 Chemical Allowance 1  LS $182,300 
 Year Five (5) 

Grand Total 
 

 
The Proposer shall provide a Fee Schedule for non-exclusive emergency/call-out services. 
  
The proposed Contract term is for a period of three (3) years, with two (2) optional one (1) 
year extensions. 
  
All work required and shown on this Request for Proposals, for which no price or item is listed on 
this proposal, shall be understood that such work, equipment, labor, tools and materials shall be 
provided without extra charge, allowance or direct payment of any kind. Payment for performing 
such work or furnishing such equipment, labor, tools and materials shall be included in the above 
lump sum or unit bid prices and no additional compensation will be paid therefor.  
 
 
_______________________     ____________________ ____________ 
Name of Bidder    Signature of Bidder                    Date 
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